
 
 

     MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2004, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 

Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager 

Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon P. Hackler, Town Attorney Robert 
P. Kaase, Patrol Officer Chris Irvin, Stephanie Porter-Nichols with 
Wytheville Enterprise, Agnes Eades  

 
RE:  CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members 
was present. The invocation was given by Vice-Mayor King followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
led by Councilman Jones. 
 
RE:  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
February 9, 2004, the request of the Wythe County Technology Center for issuance of a raffle 
permit for 2004, the request of the Girl Scouts Wythe Service Unit for waiver of fee for use of the 
Community Center for a social activity on April 16 and 17, 2004, and the request of the Virginia 
Department of Agriculture for waiver of fee for use of the Community Center for a pre-bid 
conference on March 16, 2004. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by 
Councilman Jones to approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular 
meeting of February 9, 2004, the request of the Wythe County Technology Center for issuance 
of a raffle permit for 2004, the request of the Girl Scouts Wythe Service Unit for waiver of fee for 
use of the Community Center for a social activity on April 16 and 17, 2004, and the request of 
the Virginia Department of Agriculture for waiver of fee for use of the Community Center for a 
pre-bid conference on March 16, 2004. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the 
motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there 
being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William 
B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He inquired if there are persons 
present who wish to address Council during Citizens’ Period. There being none, he proceeded 
with the agenda.  
 
RE: OLD BUSINESS 
 
Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following: 
 
1. Each Council member has been given a copy of two resolutions that Town staff would 

ask the Council to consider. As the Council knows, the Town is seeking grant funds from 
the Tobacco Commission in the amount of $250,000 to be used for meeting space at the 
new Community Center. Additionally, an application will be sent to the Tobacco 
Commission for $120,000 that will be used at the Visitor’s Center at the Homestead 
Museum site. The Tobacco Commission has requested that the Council makes these 
funding requests by way of resolutions. Mayor Crewe remarked that the Council has the 
resolutions that were placed at each Council member’s place when they arrived at the 
meeting. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Councilman 
Weisiger to approve the two resolutions seeking grant funds from the Tobacco 
Commission in the amounts of $250,000 and $120,000 to be used respectively for the 
Community Center and the Visitor’s Center at the Homestead Museum site. Mayor 
Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on this motion. There being none, the motion 
was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: 
Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, 
Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 

 
2. The Budget and Finance Committee will meet this week on Wednesday, February 25, 

2004. Later on Wednesday, the Crossroads Regional Industrial Facility Authority will 
meet at the Joint Industrial Development Authority’s office. 

 



 
 

3. On Thursday, February 26, 2004, at 3:00 p.m., the Joint Industrial Development 
Authority will have its regular monthly meeting, and it is going to be held in the 
conference room at the Wythe County Judicial Center.  

 
RE:  BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Vice-Mayor King, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, stated that at the last 
meeting of Council, the Committee presented several proposed amendments to the Town’s 
Personnel Regulations. She noted if the Council recalls, these revisions included certain 
housekeeping items and codification of the Safety/Risk Management Program. Vice-Mayor King 
stated they also included certain revisions concerning Workers’ Compensation leave and 
required that lost time accidents be charged to Family Medical Leave. She remarked that lastly, 
the Committee also reviewed a policy that dealt with days where there is inclement weather and 
employees may potentially have trouble getting to work. Vice-Mayor King stated that after 
discussing this revision at some length, the Committee continues to suggest that the policy be 
amended to the extent that it allows a one-hour grace period in which the employee must be at 
work. She advised if the employee is tardy more than one hour, then the employee must use 
either compensatory time or vacation time in one-quarter day increments. Vice-Mayor King 
noted that later in the meeting, the Council will consider an ordinance making these revisions. 
She indicated that at that time, the Committee would suggest that the rules be suspended and 
the ordinance be adopted on first and final reading. Vice-Mayor King advised that also, the 
Committee would recommend to the Council that it adopt the Safety/Risk Management Program 
as it has now been revised.  
 
Vice-Mayor King also reported that the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority 
continues with its efforts to develop apartments to be known as the Cassell Pines Development 
Project, which will be situated on a parcel of land owned by the Authority on Cassell Road. She 
noted that the Housing Authority has received a planning grant from the Virginia Department of 
Housing and Community Development and is in the process of making applications to various 
state and federal agencies for project financing. Vice-Mayor King explained that project 
financing has two basic components, one that would be additional funds from the Department of 
Housing and Community Development for site work such as streets, water, sewer, etc. She 
noted the second component of the financing will be loan funds from the Federal Land Bank in 
Atlanta. Vice-Mayor King advised that the application process for these funds is very 
competitive, and awards are based on points an applicant scores during the process. She 
stated there are a number of actions that must be taken either by the Authority or by the Town 
Council to maximize the points in the application process. Vice-Mayor King pointed out that 
several of these actions can be handled administratively and include letters that confirm the 
zoning is correct, the property is not located in a flood zone, and utilities are available for the 
project. She indicated there are other actions that Council needs to consider, which involve a 
resolution stating the construction of this housing will be of benefit to the community and 
agreeing to waive the water and sewer connection fees as well as the building permit fees for 
the project. Vice-Mayor King stated the value of the water and sewer connection fees and 
building permits totals about $25,000. She noted the Committee would recommend that the 
Town Manager be authorized to execute the appropriate forms, which are attached, and that the 
resolution be adopted later in the meeting. Vice-Mayor King stated the Committee also 
recommends that the water and sewer connection fees and building permit fees for this project 
be waived. It was the consensus of the Council that Town Manager Sutherland be authorized to 
execute the appropriate forms. A copy of the Budget and Finance Committee report is attached 
and made part of these minutes. (Attachment). 
 
RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Crockett, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated the Crossroads 
Regional Industrial Facility Authority took action last week to seek grant funds for the installation 
of water and sewer facilities for the south side of Progress Park. He noted that grant funds will 
be sought from the Virginia Tobacco Commission, the Department of Housing and Community 
Development, and the Mount Rogers Planning District Commission. Councilman Crockett 
indicated that grant funds in the amount of $541,000 will be requested from the Tobacco 
Commission, $300,000 from the Department of Housing and Community Development, and 
approximately $80,000 from the Mount Rogers Planning District Commission. He explained that 
the total cost of the installation of both water and sewer to the south side of the park is 
approximately $1.6 million. Councilman Crockett noted that the water line project, in which the 
Town will participate, will involve the extension of a 20-inch water line from a point near the 
Edgemont Center eastwardly to the corporate limit line. He advised that this 20-inch line will 
connect with the County’s water system at this point. Councilman Crockett stated a new line will 
then be extended northward to the south side of Progress Park. He remarked that the County 
will be providing sewer service to the south side of Progress Park, and their project will involve 



 
 

installation of a pump station and certain sewer lines. Councilman Crockett noted this project 
coordinates very well with the ongoing efforts of the Town, Wythe County, and Carroll County to 
create a regional water system. He advised that the 20-inch line the Committee described, 
going from the Edgemont Center to the corporate limits, had already been planned, and an 
extension to the south side of Progress Park will enhance the Joint Industrial Development 
Authority’s efforts in locating new industrial prospects on this property. Councilman Crockett 
explained that there is no action needed by the Council, but the Committee did want to provide 
the Council with an update on these funding efforts. Mayor Crewe noted the Council appreciates 
the update, and they hope the grants funds are successful.  
 
Councilman Crockett also reported that Joint Industrial Development Authority Executive 
Director Alan Hawthorne made a presentation to the Committee last week giving them an 
overview of certain economic conditions and trends in Wytheville and Wythe County. He noted 
the presentation had a variety of statistical data concerning employment and wages for this 
area. Councilman Crockett stated the employment data illustrated that the types of jobs 
available in Wythe County are quite diversified. He stated that employment opportunities in 
Wythe County can be described in thirteen broad categories. Councilman Crockett advised that 
interestingly, the total number of positions available is relatively equal with only two sectors, 
retail trade and manufacturing, achieving double digit percentages. He indicated that these two 
sectors also generate the largest amount of payroll within the County. Councilman Crockett 
stated that Dr. Hawthorne also presented several graphs noting unemployment levels in Wythe 
County as compared to this region, the state, and the total United States. He noted this area’s 
unemployment rates have mirrored those seen throughout the state, but indicate that the growth 
in employment that the Town and County have seen in the past year have been significant as 
compared to the state and this region. Councilman Crockett indicated the expansions that were 
announced in 2003 by Wytheville Technologies, Musser Lumber, Fuel Systems, and Dalton 
Enterprises created 220 new jobs. He stated this does not reflect the previous announcements 
made by the Pepsi Bottling Group and Klockner in Rural Retreat. He stated the Committee 
found Dr. Hawthorne’s presentation interesting and enlightening and noted it is available for 
review by the Council or citizens. Councilman Crockett advised that the Committee thinks it 
does indicate that the efforts of Wythe County and Wytheville to create job opportunities have 
been effective, and it appears they will continue to bring good jobs to the citizens. Mayor Crewe 
advised that he knows firsthand if anyone is interested in seeing the presentation, it can be 
viewed by e-mail, and the slides are available by e-mail communications. A copy of the Public 
Works Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment).  
 
RE: APPOINTMENTS – PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of appointments to the Planning 
Commission to fill the expiring terms of Mr. William Bondurant and Dr. William F. Snyder whose 
terms expire March 2, 2004. He advised that Dr. Snyder is eligible for reappointment, but Mr. 
William Bondurant is not eligible for reappointment. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and 
seconded by Councilman Jones to reappoint Dr. William F. Snyder to the Planning Commission. 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion 
was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. 
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. 
Against: None. Mayor Crewe advised that Dr. Snyder has been reappointed, and if there is 
another person interested in serving on the Planning Commission, the Council would like to 
hear from them since there is another opening on the Planning Commission.  
 
RE: APPOINTMENT - BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the appointment of a member to the Board of 
Architectural Review to fill the expiring term of Mrs. Tracy Holliday whose term expires February 
27, 2004. He explained that Mrs. Holliday is not eligible for reappointment. Mayor Crewe 
indicated that the Council has in their package the application that has been received. A motion 
was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to appoint Mrs. Susan 
Zammit to the Board of Architectural Review. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on 
the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1166 – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
 
Mayor Crewe presented Ordinance No. 1166, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance No. 640, the Town of Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, Section XIX, Planned Unit 
Development, Subsections 19-5 and 19-15.1, on third and final reading. He remarked that as 
the Council will recall, it has been amended with language inserted by Town Attorney Kaase as 



 
 

the result of the Council’s discussions about bonds being binding on subsequent developers. A 
motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to adopt 
Ordinance No. 1166, an ordinance amending and reenacting Ordinance No. 640, the Town of 
Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, Section XIX, Planned Unit Development, Subsections 19-5 and 
19-15.1, on third and final reading. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on this 
ordinance. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: 
 
FOR: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 

William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
AGAINST:   None 
 
ABSTENTIONS:  None 
 
Ordinance No. 1166 was adopted on third and final reading.  
 
RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1168 – PERSONNEL ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
 
Mayor Crewe presented Ordinance No. 1168, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance No. 1028, generally known as Personnel Rules, Regulations, and Policies, of the 
Town of Wytheville, Virginia, so as to include revisions to Section 5.10, Inclement Weather 
Leave Policy, and Section 6.3, Worker’s Compensation, on first reading. He noted this 
ordinance will change the Inclement Weather Policy that was in the report from the Budget and 
Finance Committee. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman 
Jones to suspend the rules and adopt Ordinance No. 1168, an ordinance amending and 
reenacting Ordinance No. 1028, generally known as Personnel Rules, Regulations, and 
Policies, of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, so as to include revisions to Section 5.10, 
Inclement Weather Leave Policy, and Section 6.3, Worker’s Compensation, on first and final 
reading. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Councilman Crockett 
inquired regarding Paragraph 5-10 where the last sentence states, “Emergency personnel who 
do not report to work at all will be placed on leave without pay.” He inquired if he is to 
understand that the emergency personnel would be those people who would be required to 
work in addition to their normal eight hours or inquired what this means. Town Manager 
Sutherland explained that emergency personnel would be policemen, firemen, treatment plant 
operators, and snow removal personnel. Councilman Crockett inquired if these employees do 
not report to work, they will not receive any pay and inquired if that is correct and if they will be 
placed on leave without pay. Mayor Crewe stated that is correct. He inquired if there is any 
other discussion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor 
and there being no opposition: 
 
FOR: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 

William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
AGAINST:   None 
 
ABSTENTIONS:  None 
 
Ordinance No. 1168 was adopted on first and final reading. Mayor Crewe noted this ordinance 
will become effective immediately. 
 
RE: RESOLUTION – CASSELL PINES DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of a resolution regarding the 
Cassell Pines Development Project for the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority. 
He noted that both Committees have reviewed this project. Mayor Crewe explained that there 
will be six one-bedroom and twelve two-bedroom apartments. He noted the resolution is 
required in order to give the Housing Authority points for the grant funds, but the resolution 
states the Council will waive the water and sewer connection fees, which would be 
approximately $25,000. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman 
Jones to approve the resolution regarding the Cassell Pines Development Project. Mayor Crewe 
inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved 
with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., 
Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: 
None. 
 
 
 



 
 

RE: RESOLUTION – SEWER INTERCEPTOR PROJECT 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of a resolution requesting Rural 
Development to increase the loan amount on the Sewer Interceptor Project by $270,000. He 
noted this is housekeeping in nature, but it increases the amount of funding. Mayor Crewe 
stated as the Council will recall, in June 2002, the Town applied for a Rural Development loan in 
a resolution in the amount of $822,000 for the Sewer Interceptor Project. He noted the bids 
came in higher than this amount, and were $848,857 specifically. Mayor Crewe stated the Town 
has changed the amount to make a loan resolution in the amount of $270,000. He noted the 
total project cost is $1,092,000. Councilman Jones indicated he is trying to go back and look at 
section one. He noted when he read that, it states there were $607,000, but the low bid was 
$848,000, so the $270,000 would add on to the $607,000, and it would not be $1,092,000 and 
inquired if that is correct. Town Manager Sutherland explained that Rural Development required 
the Town to revise the entire budget and if the Council views the back page, it delineates the 
amounts. Mayor Crewe noted the initial construction cost was $607,000, and then the revised 
estimate is approximately $848,857. Town Manager Sutherland noted the building, engineering, 
etc. costs have to be added. Councilman Jones stated that he now understands. Mayor Crewe 
indicated that the differences in the numbers are the interest, the contingencies, and 
construction costs, and this is what has changed. Councilman Crockett stated he is looking at 
the $1,092,000 compared to $822,000 as being 32.85 percent higher. He noted he is not sure 
he understands quite everything that is happening. Councilman Crockett advised that the bid 
was $248,000 higher. Town Manager Sutherland stated the bid was $241,857 higher. 
Councilman Crockett stated there was the other $46,000 and inquired as to how it comes up to 
this amount. Mayor Crewe explained that the construction bid increased by $241,857, and that 
is the top number on the back page. He noted the interest charges increased to $65,000, the 
construction increased by $241,857, and the contingencies decreased by $18,657, and this is 
where the difference of $270,000 comes from if he is reading the table correctly. Town Manager 
Sutherland explained that some of these fees have been paid such as the basic engineering 
fees, but they still have to be part of the project budget. Councilman Crockett advised that what 
really concerns him, and noted he has done some quick math, is the construction costs which 
are almost 39 percent higher than what was originally estimated it would cost and inquired if that 
is correct. Town Manager Sutherland stated that is correct and noted what was found was that 
people were scared of this job, and it is a big job with a lot of rock and a lot of big pumping 
situations because as the contractor goes down through there and takes out sections of line to 
install new sections of line, the pipes are bursted, and they are actually going to be pumping 
sewage around down to the next manhole, which may be long distances. He noted for whatever 
reasons, the contractors were a little nervous about this job. Councilman Crockett indicated that 
he guesses when the Council starts looking at preparing budgets and looking at costs figures, 
loan applications, etc., anytime the Town starts dealing with any construction job in Wythe 
County, it has to be anticipated that there will be some rock. He noted he did not know how 
there could be much digging in Wythe County without hitting rock. Councilman Crockett stated 
that for budget purposes, it appears this would weigh off as far as getting some type of high 
estimate, and when the Council starts looking at the budget and figuring out that they are 39 
percent higher on a particular project, if this type of thing runs consistently, there are some real 
budget problems when figures go up that much. He noted this may not be as high as many 
projects the Town has bid on, but, certainly, $241,000 higher is a large amount. Town Manager 
Sutherland pointed out that this was the low bid. Mayor Crewe advised that the other thing that 
may factor into this is, if he remembers correctly, Rural Development held up the Town’s plans, 
and the Town is almost 18 or 20 months late, and it was June 2002 when the Council adopted 
the initial amounts, so the estimates were made prior to that time. He indicated that now the 
Town is in 2004 trying to get the bids. Town Manager Sutherland advised it has been awhile, 
and this is true. Mayor Crewe noted some of this is due to the lag time, but not all of it, and 
noted that, obviously, the Town cannot miss the amount by 40 percent just because it had to 
wait. Councilman Crockett reiterated that he does have a concern, and noted he is not speaking 
against the project, and advised he thinks it is a good project, but as the Town moves forward, 
he thinks the Council should have some better ideas of the spending or whoever estimated the 
original cost figures missed it by this much. He advised he thinks the Council should start asking 
some questions. Mayor Crewe noted he hopes this does not happen on the new Community 
Center. He inquired if there is any other discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion 
was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. 
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. 
Against: None. 
 
RE: MUSEUMS CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 
  
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the approval of a consultant agreement for the 
development, design, and installation of new exhibitions at the Boyd and Rock House 
Museums. He noted that, again, if he is understanding correctly, it would be funded, in large 



 
 

part, with a Rural Development grant and inquired if that is what this resolution is required by. 
Town Manager Sutherland stated that is correct and advised that Director of Museums Emerson 
has reviewed this with the Council. He noted this is $27,500 of grant funds from Rural 
Development that would be matched locally, and a large portion of this match, if the Council 
recalls, will come from the Wythe County Historical Society and others who are contributing to 
the local match. Town Manager Sutherland indicated that the total project cost is $55,000. 
Mayor Crewe noted this was his point that the Town is not paying the $55,000 out of the Town’s 
budget, and the money will be coming from other sources and the grant. Councilman Crockett 
inquired as to which portion comes from the Town’s budget. Mayor Crewe advised that he 
thinks the amount is $7,000. Assistant Town Manager Moore noted that $15,000 will be coming 
from a portion of Director of Museums Emerson’s budget. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor 
King and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to approve the consultant agreement for the 
development, design, and installation of new exhibitions at the Boyd and Rock House Museums 
and to authorize the appropriate Town official, whether it be the Mayor or another Town official, 
to execute the document. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any further discussion on the 
approval of the agreement. There being none, the motion was approved with the following 
voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, 
John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION – CASSELL PINES PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT  
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission regarding preliminary plans of the Wytheville Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority for the “Cassell Pines Project” planned unit development located on the north 
side of Cassell Road and east of Longview Village Road. He noted this is to approve the 
preliminary plans so that it can go forward. Mayor Crewe indicated that this has been reviewed 
by the Planning Commission. He noted that the Council has the information in their packet, and 
they have seen the plans at the Committee meetings. Mayor Crewe remarked that the Council 
also has a summary of the Planning Commission’s recommendation. He advised that this 
comes from the Planning Commission, and they would recommend that the Council approve the 
preliminary plans. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Councilman 
Crockett to approve the preliminary plans of the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority for the “Cassell Pines Project” planned unit development located on the north side of 
Cassell Road and east of Longview Village Road. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any 
discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting 
in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. 
Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: SAFETY RISK/MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
 
Councilman Crockett inquired if the Council had to approve the Safety Risk/Management 
Program. Town Manager Sutherland noted that it was reported on under the Budget and 
Finance Committee report. Mayor Crewe noted he thought it was part of the ordinance, but 
Councilman Crockett is correct. He stated it was the first part of the Budget and Finance 
Committee report, and it was the Personnel Ordinance that was part of the Budget and Finance 
Committee report which is Ordinance No. 1168. Mayor Crewe indicated that Councilman 
Crockett is correct, and he does not think the Safety Risk/Management Program is part of the 
ordinance. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Jones to 
adopt the Safety Risk/Management Program. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion 
on the motion. Councilman Crockett inquired if all of the pages in the program are new or 
inquired if there are some changes involved. Mayor Crewe explained that some of the 
information has been moved around from different places and put all together. Town Manager 
Sutherland explained that there are relatively few changes with exception of updated OSHA 
numbers. Town Clerk Hackler noted that there has been the inserting of appendices into the 
actual document whereas they were attachments in the back of the document. She advised that 
there are three policies in the back that the Council approved in Committee meetings but they 
were not approved in this document. Town Clerk Hackler summarized that other than what she 
mentioned, nothing else has changed. Councilman Crockett inquired if this is part of an 
ordinance, and if Town staff is requesting that it be approved on first and final reading. Town 
Clerk Hackler stated it is actually just a policy that the Council needs to adopt as a policy. Mayor 
Crewe remarked that if he understands what the Council will be adopting, it begins with the 
page behind the report which is a letter adopted January 10, 1994, and signed at the bottom by 
Town Manager Sutherland and himself, and it goes all of the way through page 106, and it is the 
information before the Cassell Pines letter. He noted that everything in between would be 
included in the Safety Risk/Management Policy. Mayor Crewe reiterated that it is relocating the 
information from several different locations in the Town’s existing policy and including the ones 
that have never had Council action taken on. He inquired if there is any other discussion and 



 
 

thanked Councilman Crockett for calling this matter to his attention. Mayor Crewe explained that 
he made a note regarding this matter and then missed it. There being no further discussion, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: 
Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles G. 
Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: COMMUNITY CENTER 
 
Councilman Jones inquired if the contractor has broken ground at the new Community Center 
today. Councilman Weisiger stated he did not see anything there today and noted he drove by 
earlier this afternoon. Councilman Jones stated he thought they could have cut trees today for 
sure. Mayor Crewe noted they could have cut trees, and advised they received the notice to 
proceed and the weather was good. Assistant Town Manager Moore remarked that they will 
probably commence work this week, but they did not start today. Mayor Crewe indicated that 
possibly they were worried about the weather forecast or did not start for some other reason. 
 
RE: ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting (7:35 p.m.). 
 
 
            

 Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
        
Sharon P. Hackler, CMC, Clerk of Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2004\Council Minutes 022304.doc 

ronj
Back



 
 1 

  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
 MARCH 8, 2004 
 

 

1. At several of our past Committee meetings, we have considered requests that we 

have received for the Town to install drainage pipes and/or structures outside of the 

street right of way onto private property. During the past eighteen months, there has 

been significant precipitation, and there have been drainage problems at locations 

on private properties that do not normally experience these problems during periods 

when there are normal amounts of precipitation. In any event, we have carefully 

considered each of these to determine if the Town should participate in these 

requested projects. While there is no doubt that many private property owners have 

drainage problems, we have come to the conclusion that the long-standing Town 

policy regarding drainage works on private property is still a sound policy. The Town 

has had a long-standing policy that it will not perform drainage projects on private 

property. As the Council knows, there are many problem drainage areas, and if we 

assist one or more private property owners with their problem, it would clearly be the 

precedent for performing drainage projects on private property all over town. We 

think the current policy is sound, and, unless the Council wishes to amend this 

policy, we will continue with it. 

 

2. Recently, there were some serious electrical problems with the traffic signals at the 

corner of Fourth and Main Streets. Much of the wiring beneath the street was 

installed many years ago, and has deteriorated to the point that it caused an 



 
 2 

electrical short, which made the signal inoperable at various times for about two 

days. Town forces were able to repair the signal to the extent that it became 

operable, but advised that all of the conduits and other connections beneath the 

street will need to be redone. Since there will be several conduits and other 

electrical devices buried beneath the pavement, there will be periods when crews 

will be in Main Street working. We plan on this work being performed in the evenings 

so that it will not impact traffic in the downtown area during the daytime. An exact 

date for this construction has not been established, but we would anticipate it would 

be within the next couple of months. No action is needed by the Council, but we did 

want to make everyone aware of the work that would be performed at this 

intersection. 

 

 

                  
                   William B. Weisiger 

 
 
                                           

             Charles G. Crockett     
 
H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2004\PWMAR08.doc 

ronj
Back



 
 2 

letter from the Wythe Arts Council and the Request for Waiver of Fees is attached 

for your review.  

 

 We have reviewed the requests by the Arts Council and find them to be essentially 

the same requests that have been made for many years. We do not anticipate a 

problem with any of these items. We would note that the Town has, again this year, 

applied for grant funds on the Arts Council’s behalf. As such, for all of the areas 

where fees are being requested to be waived, the Arts Council will need to pay 

these fees (up to $5,000) and then be reimbursed by the Town, provided they 

receive the grant funds. 

 

 We applaud the Wythe Arts Council’s continued efforts in bringing quality 

entertainment to our citizens. It is the recommendation of the Budget and Finance 

Committee that the Council approve the request of the Wythe Arts Council with the 

stipulations noted earlier. 

 

 

 

               
                           Jacqueline K. King 

 
 

                                      
  John W. Jones, Jr. 
 
 

H:\COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2004\BFMAR08.doc 



 
 1 

 BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 MARCH 8, 2004 

 

1. We have received notice from the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality 

requesting “demonstration of financial responsibility” for an underground storage 

tank, which is situated at the Water Treatment Plant. The underground tank at the 

Water Treatment Facility holds liquid alum, which is used to treat water. Regardless 

of what the underground tank contains, state regulations now require that any 

property owner must provide financial security in the event that the tank would 

rupture and potentially cause pollution to ground water. The amount of surety a tank 

owner must have is dependent on the tank size. Based on the size of our tank, 

which is the lowest category, the surety that we must provide is $20,000. There are, 

basically, only two options that we have available in providing this surety. First, we 

can purchase a bond or the Council can take an action to pledge $20,000 worth of 

reserve funds to be used for cleanup in the event that the tank ruptures. We think 

the best course of action is to earmark $20,000 within the Town’s reserve funds as 

our demonstration of financial responsibility. It would be our recommendation that 

we authorize Town Treasurer Mike Stephens to communicate to the Department of 

Environmental Quality our pledge of these funds. 

 

2. We have received a letter from the Wythe Arts Council, Ltd. seeking action by the 

Town on a number of matters relating to the annual Chautauqua Festival. Several of 

these requests involve the waiving of fees for use of recreational facilities, and, as 

such, the Recreation Director has reviewed and endorsed the request. A copy of the 




